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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISES MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may
be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with
neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising
out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and
the business sectors or countries in which the companies
operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristic of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue
paid announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have
access to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to
obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from on or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of New Chinese Medicine
Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to New Chinese Medicine
Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 4 7] & %}

COPRORATE PROFILE NN B

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 October ARNATIR_ZEEEF+A=ZTHEHEHER
2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the BEREESATE (KB EMR T AX#HREE
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the RAF e RABIRHD IR _ZEE_F=ZRAtA%E
Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 7 B PrEIER £ -
March 2002.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 4 7] & ¥
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT x & & &

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The financial year of 2006/07 is the period for the new
management team to implement our new business strategy and to
lay all the ground work for further growth of the Group. Health
care is still our main focus and in the past year, we have concentrated
our wholesale and retail business in the marketing and sale of top
graded six-year Korean red ginseng processed products in Hong
Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic of China. A series of
successful promotional campaign had been launched throughout
the year in leading department stores, retail chains, hospitals,
educational institutions, as well as medical and health-related
associations. Our products were represented in various trade shows
in both Hong Kong and various parts of China. The sale of the
aforesaid products had brought to the Group a steady turnover
throughout the year.

Nevertheless, we have also put a great deal of time and effort
in developing new business opportunities with various medical and
health department of several provinces in the Greater China region
with a focus to explore new retail and investment possibilities in
order to establish and expand our platform as a base for medical
and health products and services throughout the region. We
anticipate our effort will be entering a phase of fruition in the
coming year.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board, | would again like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to all our equity holders,
customers, business partners who have continuously offered their
support, confidence and encouragement. Not to mention the great
devotion, diligence and effort of the management and the members
of staff who tirelessly committed themselves towards the continuous
improvement of the Group. With all these supports remain, we shall
continue to explore means to improve on our Group’s financial results
and investment returns in the years to come.

Wong Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 3 B &1 #® & 2 #f

BUSINESS REVIEW

In order to increase the public awareness of the Group’s health
care products, the Group has been engaged in a series of promotional
campaign in restaurants, exhibitions, shopping centres, health and
beauty retail chains in Hong Kong and Macau. Since processed health
care products made from 6-years Korean Red Ginseng has recently
been the Group's key products, the Group has been concentrating
in several brand building as well as educational exercises of the
end-users with more knowledge of the Group’s products.

The majority of the public know that Korean ginseng helps
maintain health but they still do not have a clear picture of the
active ingredients contained in ginseng and how these active
ingredients work in a human body, such as ginsenosides (Ginseng
saponin), which consists of more than 30 different kinds of congeners
which help maintain homeostatic against deleterious environmental
stress, and also further improve the quality of life by alleviating or
improving psychological, cardiovascular, immunological and digestive
system disorders.

Korean Red Ginseng not only being accredited for the highest
quality of ginseng product worldwide but also its unique usage as a
traditional herbal medicine as well as in food that help expand life
span makes them very popular in Korea as well as other parts of the
world especially in Asian countries.

PROSPECTS

The Group firmly believes that the products introduced to the
general public is a premium type of health supplement and will be
well received by health conscious users regardless of their age group.
In addition to general promotional campaigns, the Group also targets
our marketing work towards key professional organizations, academic
and sports groups, etc. The Group will invest in educating users and
potential users alike the benefits of taking the Group’s health care
products made from 6-years Korean Red Ginseng. This aims to
convince the public the efficacies of the Group’s processed health
care products substantiated by reputable scientific research.

In addition to promoting the Group’s ginseng processed
products, the Group will at the same time explore other health care
as well as beauty products that will suit the taste of the increasingly
demanding health conscious consumers in Hong Kong, Macau, China,
as well as other parts of Asia. The exploration and adoption of the
modern health, beauty and drug store concept will be the Group’s
major target development in China in the years to come.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EZ E st #® Kk 2

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of
approximately HK$14,692,000 for the year ended 31 March 2007,
which represented sales of health care products. The turnover for
the year ended 31 March 2006 was approximately HK$9,017,000.

The Group also managed to maintain tight control over its
operating expenses in the year under review. The operating expenses,
exclude the equity-settled share-based payments of HK$5,823,600,
decrease from approximately HK$5,176,000 in 2006 to approximately
HK$4,875,000 in 2007, representing a decrease of 6%.

Audited net loss attributable to the equity holders for the year
ended 31 March 2007 amounted to HK$6,628,342. The net loss for
the year ended 31 March 2006 amounted to HK$1,332,011.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s net current assets was
HK$15,051,464 as compared to net current assets of HK$8,970,966
as at 31 March 2006. There were no bank borrowings as at 31
March 2007 (31 March 2006: Nil).

On 9 October 2006, holders of the Convertible Bonds (the
“Bond"”) have fully converted an aggregated principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 Bond into shares of the Company at the price of
HK$0.072 per share, which resulted in a total of 138,888,890 shares
being issued on the conversion.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 1 February 2002, a total of 46,000,000 options have been granted
on 29 November 2006 to employees of the Group to subscribe for a
total of 46,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.153
per share. A total of 46,000,000 options were exercised by the
option holders during the year ended 31 March 2007, which resulted
in a total of 46,000,000 shares being issued on the subscription.
There was no option outstanding as at 31 March 2007.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s gearing ratio, being the
ratio of total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 25% (2006:
approximately 87%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
Dollars and considers that the impact of foreign exchange exposure
of the Group is minimal.

CHARGE OF GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2007, the Group did not have any material
charge on assets (2006: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group had no significant investments during the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the
year under review.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2007, the Group employed a total of 4 (31
March 2006: 3) full-time employees in Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2007, the total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, but excluding the equity-settled share-based payments
of HK$5,823,600, amounted to HK$2,034,328 (2006:
HK$1,801,520). The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, qualification, experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Some directors waived their remuneration for the
year ended 31 March 2007.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2007, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2006: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & # & & @ & 2 #f

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS REHERE
As at 31 March 2007, the Group had commitment for future RZEZ+LF=A=+—H FEERET
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease which AHECERAMEZARFRERSREREZ
fall due as follows: FHET
2007 2006
Z22tF —ETRF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Within 1 year —FR 129,600 12,320
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZERF(DEERME) 23,040 -
152,640 12,320
The operating lease relate to warehouse facilities for a term of e Z’Tﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ’\)a R FHR-F
two years from 5 June 2006 to 4 June 2008 at a monthly rental of FARRBE-ZENFANEA ?%Hﬂﬁi
HK$10,800. 810,800/ 7T
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS & = f§ 4t

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Keung, aged 54, is the chairman of the Group.
Mr. Wong is responsible for overseeing the formulation of corporate
strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 22 July 2005.
Mr. Wong has extensive experience in trading, merchandising and
logistics businesses, and financial and real estate investments. He is
also active in the Singaporean real estate market in recent years.
Mr. Wong has management and investment experiences in different
areas which may be beneficial to the Company.

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon, aged 47, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall
management and business operations of the group. Mr. Wong joined
the Group on 31 August 2005. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Southern California.
Mr. Wong has over 25 years’ experience of securities trading,
international property development and investment and holds
directorships in a number of private companies in the investment
and commercial sectors. Mr. Wong has served for over 23 years as
one of the senior executives of an international private investment
group based in Hong Kong.

Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement, aged 30, is the executive
director of the Group. Mr. Fung is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning; research and development; and marketing
operations. Mr. Fung joined the Group on 22 July 2005. Mr. Fung
has gained extensive management experience in the development
and manufacturing of consumer products for a number of years.
Mr. Fung is also a director of a number of established privately-
owned manufacturing companies in Hong Kong and PRC. His
knowledge and expertise in the manufacturing industry may be
beneficial to the Company in research and development areas.

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia, aged 43, is the executive director of
the Group. Ms. Tong is responsible for the business; sales and
marketing operations of the Group. Ms. Tong joined the Group on
22 July 2005. Ms. Tong is the chairlady of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. Tong is experienced in management
and business development both in Hong Kong and overseas. Ms.
Tong has been engaged in the tourist-retailing industry for over 10
years which include the supervision of various investment projects
such as the operation of the Duty Free Shops. She will be responsible
for research and development in Chinese medicine, health and skin-
care products as well as new investment opportunities.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS % = f /i

Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 51, is the executive director of the
Group. Mr. Ng is responsible for the business; sales and marketing
operations of the Group. Mr. Ng joined the Group on 13 July 2006.
Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering. He is a
senior member of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers
and Society of Manufacturing Engineers in the United States of
America. Mr. Ng has over 20 years experience in manufacturing and
marketing of traditional Chinese medicines in PRC and Hong Kong.
His knowledge and expertise in the Chinese medicine industry may
be beneficial to the Company in research and development areas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Kar Wing, aged 50, was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 6 October, 2004. Mr. Chu graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Science
in 1979. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking industry
and commerce. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of three Hong Kong listed companies, namely Emperor Entertainment
Group Limited, Oriental Investment Corporation Limited and
Foundation Group Limited.

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of the Company on 6 October, 2004. Dr. Loke has over
30 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants; and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He is also an Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants. He is the Chairman of MHL Consulting Limited. He
also serves as an independent non-executive director of Shandong
Molong Petroleum Machinery Company Limited, United Metals
Holdings Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, VODone Limited,
Wealthmark International Holdings Limited and China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Holdings Limited, companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 20 July 2005. Mr. Ku is a
practising solicitor and Notary Public in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Ku is also qualified to practise as a solicitor
in England and Wales, and in Victoria, Australia. Mr. Ku served
firstly as a non-executive director and later as an executive director
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited during the period from
June 2000 to March 2005.
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OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2007.

It is always a key concern of the Company to have high
standards of corporate governance. It is important because the Board
believes that good quality corporate governance would assist the
management to monitor the Company’s business activities effectively
and thus equity holders’ interests will be well protected.

The Board will discuss the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s compliance
and deviations throughout the year ended 31 March 2007.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealing as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings throughout the year ended 31 March
2007.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of five
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Wong Chun Keung, Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement, Ms. Tong
Pui Chi Lucia and Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon served as executive
directors for the whole year ended 31 March 2007. Mr. Ng Tin Shui
was appointed as an executive director on 13 July 2006. Mr. Chu
Kar Wing, Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John
served as independent non-executive directors for the whole year
ended 31 March 2007.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial
and operating performance of the Group.
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There were 11 Board meetings held for the year ended 31
March 2007. Individual attendance of each Board member at these
meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Chun Keung

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia

Mr. Ng Tin Shui

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John

In compliance with Rules 5.01 and 5.02 of the GEM Listing
Rules in regarding to independent non-executive directors (the
“INED(s)"), the Company has currently three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Kar Wing, Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu
John. Dr Loke has the appropriate accounting expertise. These INEDs
can help the management to formulate the Group’s development
strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial and other
mandatory reports in strict compliance with required standards, and
ensure the Company maintains appropriate system to protect the
interests of the Company and its equity holders. The Board has
received the annual confirmation in respect of their independence
from each of the INEDs, and believes that their independence is in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules at the date of this annual
report.

DISTINCTIVE ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing.

Mr. Wong Chun Keung is the chairman of the Company who is
responsible for managing the Board and overseeing the formulation
of corporate strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon is
the chief executive officer of the Company who is responsible for
the overall management and business operations of the group.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The CG Code 4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

All the non-executive directors of the Company do not have a
specific term of appointment. However, this deviation was rectified
on 8 November 2006.

The CG Code 4.2 stipulates that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company does
not require the chairman of the board and/or managing director of
the Company to retire from his office at each annual general meeting.
In order to ensure full compliance with the CG Code 4.2, a special
resolution was proposed to amend the relevant provisions of the
articles of association of the Company at the last general meeting
on 30 August 2006 so that every director of the Company shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules. There
are three members in the audit committee comprising three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kar Wing,
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-yearly report and quarterly reports
and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee meets at least four times a year with management
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss audit findings, internal control and financial
reporting matters. The audit committee met four times during the
year ended 31 March 2007, individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is as follows:
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Attend/

Eligible to attend

HERE

Name of Director EEnE REeBEREEZRE
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing RERAE 4/4

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) B M1 £ 3/4

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BREELEE 4/4

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended 31
March 2007 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Loke Yu
(alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John, and one executive
director Miss Tong Pui Chi Lucia. Miss Tong Pui Chi Lucia being the
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy, and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management,
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings and the attendance record is set out below:

Committee members

Executive directors
Miss Tong Pui Chi Lucia

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the performance of Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
("HLB") as the external auditors of the Company and proposed to
re-appoint HLB as the external auditors. The auditors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 March 2007 is HK$300,000 (2006:
HK$275,000).
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing of
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been
adopted and appropriate accounting policies have been applied
consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
or events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors had
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going
concern basis. The responsibility of the auditors is set out in the
"Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal control.
For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Directors periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness and
adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control.

COMMUNICATION WITH EQUITY HOLDERS

The Directors will meet with the Company’s equity holders and
answer enquires raised by them in the annual and special general
meetings.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sales of healthcare products in Hong
Kong. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
30 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 are
set out on the consolidated income statement on page 26.

No interim dividend was declared for the year ended 31 March
2007 (2006: Nil).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the published results, assets, liabilities
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years
and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on page 76. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 21 to
the financial statements.

On 29 November 2006, a total of 46,000,000 options have
been granted to the employees of the Group to subscribe for a
total of 46,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.153
per share. A total of 46,000,000 options were exercised by the
option holders during the year ended 31 March 2007, which resulted
a total of 46,000,000 shares were issued on the subscription. There
was no option outstanding as at 31 March 2007. For the year
ended 31 March 2006, no share options were granted. Details of
the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Keung Chairman
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia
Mr. Ng Tin Shui
(appointed on 13 July 2006)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia, Mr. Ng Tin Shui and Mr. Chu
Kar Wing will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by
giving to the other not less than three months prior written notice.
Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company which shall expire on 30 June
2008. The agreement may be terminated by either party by giving
to the other not less than one month prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ Service Contracts” and the
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealings by directors as referred to in Rules
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) Long positions in Shares of the Company

Type

Name of Directors of interest
Bx EEE
Mr. Wong Chun Keung Corporate
(Note)

BERLE ®E
(Hf3t)

Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement Personal
RHER TS A
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia Personal
EMZ /A & A
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon Personal
FRELLE EA

Notes:

These shares are registered in the name of Excel Point Holdings
Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong
Chun Keung.
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(2) Long positions in the underlying shares of the

(2) REQAEHBROZHE

Company
Lapsed/
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled  Outstanding
Date of grant price as at during during during as at Expiry
Name of Directors of share options per share  01/04/2006 the year the year the year  31/03/2007 date
RZBERE RER R-BBLE
BA-H il T %%/ ZA=t-H
BRE BRERf  HATEZ Ritz g i#e  HAEZ
£33 RtzAH k& BRE BRE BhE BRE BRE ERAH
HKS
AT
Mr. Wong Mo Wah 29/11/2006 0.153 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - 28/1112009
Gordon (Note)
IRERL ERRE ZEENE
+-A=thA +-A=t/A
()
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang 29/11/2006 0.153 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - 28/11/2009
Clement (Note)
BEREE ZEERE ZETNE
+-AZthA +-A=t/\A
(Hf32)
Ms. Tong Pui Chi 29/11/2006 0.153 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - 28/11/2009
Lucia (Note)
ERZ M ZEERE ZETNE
+-A=thH +-A=tNH
(H3t)
Note: fitat

The grant of options on 29 November 2006 pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme had been reviewed and approved
by the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

BEBREAIN-_ZTRF+-—A-TNA
Rz BEDEEBIFATETERNR
HfE

BREXBEEEN R_TTLE=A=+
— B ARAREFRTTHERY BHBREES
FEEHRAIEXVEBZ BTRESHD BRAME AR
PR ARRSEEMEREE (EERES
FHEGPIEXVER) 2B in - BRI HEHR 2 E
ERIAR (BRREEFRPERIA B KX
REREFELAREREZREIARR) - RREF
FRHE G EI52HEBRARRBARTF ZERL
it - IRFAER ETHRAES 46IFBME AL
A RBERF R HORE o

20 AnnuAL RerorT 2007 & 3



s @m iR AR 2 A New CHINESE MebiciNe HoLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT £ = 8§ & &

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests In Securities” above, at no time during the reporting period
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities,
including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of
persons, other than a director or chief executive officer of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or substantial
shareholders as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of shares held (long positions)

BRER

Name of shareholder

Excel Point Holdings Limited (note 1)

Mr. Wong Ching FTHEE
Ms. Chu Cheong Hing Jenny (note 2)  RE2/ME (Hf:2)
Mr. Pang Wing Keung (note 2) Tk EE (HiF2)

Notes:

1 Excel Point Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Wong Chun Keung, the chairman of the Group.

2. These are joint interests of spouse held by Ms. Chu Cheong Hing
Jenny and Mr. Pang Wing Keung.

Excel Point Holdings Limited (K1)

ESUBRONES 2ER

BRREXTEERTHBRNES 2 ES] M
WEEN  RBEHEA - AR B REERM B
ARBMBE2ETVENRE  BRARAESRT
RUWBARAREMEMEABEZ R KES
5 (BREF) MEN MIEFIHFZES
FTABATZTFEREREEMAREARA
BN MABITEETMZFER -

FTERR

R-ZBEZ+E=RA=1+—H0 BEBREBEZS
REEGEREXVEBZ E2RE3DBARRRTH
BRHAZAARRGRABRD ZEE K
B RERAMEREURAEEERNEMKE
RNEIZBERGZ—ER THERZREA 2T
MERIRA Z BES%EIA F 2 #EZZ AT (TR
BARBESUITHER)  IBREFHFRBEK
lE3B6IEMEARRRART 2 BLMAESHZE
ZRFEMT

FEROGBE (FR)

Approximate

Direct/indirect percentage
interest of shareholding

HiE BEER ZRENE I
354,980,000 47.20%
41,666,667 5.54%
40,160,128 5.34%
40,160,128 5.34%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, the directors or
chief executive officer of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than the directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote on all circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests
or short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 71% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
18% of the Group’s total purchases. Aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers were approximately 91% of the
Group's sales while the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 75% of the Group’s sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the issued capital of the Company) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's major suppliers and customers for the financial
year ended 31 March 2007.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2007, none of the directors, the management
shareholders of the company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Mo Wah Gordon
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15 June 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT & Y # ¥ Al 3 &

Eil 4 3
HLB P.Iod/;iof I:'lpgzyih%in}z

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages
26 to 75, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 4%z & #8 =

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
“EEtE ZTTRE
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 3x BT BT
Revenue W & 6 14,692,426 9,016,957
Cost of sales fizh=AD RN (13,850,010)|  (7,763,974)
Gross profit EA 842,416 1,252,983
Other income and gains H A U A R iz 8 3,504,243 3,059,278
Operating expenses BERX (10,698,142) |  (5,175,815)
Finance costs % B 9 (276,859) (468,457)
Loss before income tax Frie B A &8 (6,628,342)|  (1,332,011)
Income tax expense PR X 10 - -
Loss for the year FEHE (6,628,342)| (1,332,011)
Attributable to: PEAL -

Equity holders of the Company ARRBRAFEHA (6,628,342)|  (1,332,011)
Minority interests LE IR B R _ B
(6,628,342) (1,332,011)

Loss per share attributable to the equity AAFRAEAA

holders of the Company EhEERER

Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) EARREE (BB 15 (1.0) (0.3)
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As at 31 March 2007

R-ZT+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
—EEtE “EERE
Note HK$ HK$
B 3E BT BT
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 16 180,743 72,880
Current assets RBEE
Inventories of finished goods HARRFE 1,866,650 990,957
Trade and other receivables R Wi B T K E i B U R OE 18 6,729,314 1,015,702
Bank balances and cash BIEFERBES® 19 11,538,414 13,516,622
20,134,378 15,523,281

Total assets HWEE 20,315,121 15,596,161
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables e 1<F BR 3R I EL A JEE < BRUIE 20 5,082,914 6,552,315
Net current assets REBEERE 15,051,464 8,970,966
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 15,232,207 9,043,846
Capital and reserves BARRE
Share capital P& 21 30,085,556 | 22,690,000
Reserves = 22 (14,853,349) | (20,700,513)
Equity attributable to equity holders KRARREREE A

of the Company JE A6 = 15,232,207 1,989,487
Minority interests DERRER - -
Total equity ERAE 15,232,207 1,989,487
Non-current liabilities ¥RBEE
Convertible bond AR R E S 23 - 7,054,359

15,232,207 9,043,846

The consolidated financial statements on pages 26 to 75 were
approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 15

EE2ERNZE

TERATRBAERRESE

TEHRE226ETSAEZ AN BEREK - YA TIA

June 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chun Keung
BER
Director

EF

TRERE

Wong Mo Wah Gordon
ITRE
Director

EF
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As at 31 March 2007 R=-ZZ+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
“ETtE —ETRFE
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 5 BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZKRE 17 - -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Ui Bf BB X ) FRIA 17 - 2,498,971
Trade and other receivables R Wi B 31 K E fth JE WK TR 18 126,226 126,187
Bank balances and cash RTEFERES 19 6,648,330 11,676,123
6,774,556 14,301,281
Total assets HEE 6,774,556 14,301,281
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JEATER 3R R E b B 5 5R0B 20 286,885 289,485
Net current assets REEERH 6,487,671 | 14,011,796
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABHER 6,487,671 14,011,796
Capital and reserves BARE
Share capital % 2 21 30,085,556 | 22,690,000
Reserves HE 22 (23,597,885)| (15,732,563)
Total equity EmEE 6,487,671 6,957,437
Non-current liabilities (¥RBEE
Convertible bond R E 5 23 - 7,054,359
6,487,671 14,011,796
Wong Chun Keung Wong Mo Wah Gordon
HiER TEE
Director Director
- -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY % & B & & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

Reserves
L] ]
Convertible
Share Share  bond equity Share option  Translation Special  Accumulated Total Minority
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  reserves  interests  Total equity
THERS HY
Bx  REEN RERE WEMRR  ANER  GEER  RHEA  BREE  RRME  REAR
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
En BT En B En B E B E B
At 1 April 2005 N-EERERA-B 4690000 19,008,723 - - 195959 (39998440)  (997,235) (21,790,993) - (17,100993)
Bchange differences  BEENERL
ansing on transaion ~ EXEE
of foreign operations - - - - 125,797 - - 125,797 - 125,797
Income recognized directly ERREZEDL
in equiy A - - - - - - B TN
Loss fo the year FEBE - - - - - - (133011) (1332,011) - (1301)
Total recognized income~ EEEARAR
and expenses for the year X ME% - - - - 125,797 - (1332011) (1,206214) - (1.206214)
Issue of new shares under  RER( BB
the share subscription~~ EAHRA
agreement 18,000,000 - - - - - - - - 18,000,000
Share issue expenses RAETTEE - (739,100) - - - - - (139,100) - (739,100)
Issue of convertible bond ~ Z/7 T BB - - 303579 - - - - 303579 - 303579
At31March2006and  H=FEAE
1 April 2006 ZR=1-BR
ZE3AE
BA-H 22,690,000 18,269,623 3,035,794 - M50 (39,998,440)  (2,329.246) (20,700,513) - 1,989,487
Loss for the year ERFE - - - - - - (6628342)  (6,628342) - (6628342)
Total recognized income R ERUAR
and expenses for the year %A% - - - - - - (6628342)  (6,62834) - (6628342)

Transfer to profit o loss on HEESN EHE

disposal of foreign ERTAENIER

operations - - - - (321756 - - 3,7%) - (321,756
Reconition of equity-  BENEEAAEE

settld share-based HRRAER AR

payments - - - 5823600 - - - 5823600 - 5823600
lssue of ordinary shares T ERES

Upon exercise of LRk

share options 1,840,000 11,021,600 - (5,823,600 - - - 51198,000 - 7,038,000

lsue of ordinary shares A ERERE
upon conversion of BRIALTER

convertible bond 5,555,556 481145 (3,035,79) - - - - 177566 - 1331218
At 31 March 2007 R-ZRLE
Zh=t-8 30,085,556 34,102,679 - - - (39,998,440)  (8,957,588) (14,853,349) - 152320
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between AEEZERBEDAARRNNR_ZZT_F £
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the MAETEBEEMAR - FTREREB 28Rk ED
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at BEARARARKEBESEMETRNEEERS
the time of the group reorganization prior to the listing of the ZER o

Company’s shares in 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT % &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF “EERF
Note HK$ HK$
Operating activities REER
Loss for the year FAEE (6,628,342)|  (1,332,011)
Adjustments for: BRI ESBEELHE
Finance costs g% E A 276,859 468,457
Interest income 7B A (332,018) (281,115)
Gain arising from the Deed of Settlement a?ﬁ(y@?ﬁix 2 s - (2,229,743)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAREE 2 W (1,727,575) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEREE
and equipment EXCEE - 258,078
Depreciation of property, plant ME BMERZBZIE
and equipment 50,834 25,095
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LA /5 5\ &5 & R LA B 7
RERZNREX 5,823,600 -
Operating cash flows before movements EEEREPI s LERENE
in working capital (2,536,642) (3,091,239)
Movements in working capital: LEELEY
Inventories of finished goods HRRFEE (875,693) (228,644)
Trade and other receivables JIE s BR 30 K E fth B U X TE (5,714,523) (492,985)
Trade and other payables JE 11 B 30 K E fth FB A5 FROB (62,673) (128,558)
Amount due to a director B —ZEERIA - (36,540)
Cash used in operations REXBHRASE (9.189,531)|  (3,977,966)
Interest paid BEAFE - (24,779)
Income tax paid BERAEH - (418)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBERERSTFHE (9,189,531) (4,003,163)
Investing activities REETH
Interest received B H B 332,018 281,115
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE BEILE (158,697) (89,438)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB A 24 2 -
Net cash generated by investing activities REFEFEHE FHE 173,323 191,677
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary shares B AR M ATEHE 21 7,038,000 17,260,900
Proceeds from unsecured loan ﬂ?fﬁﬁg KT 15 FRIR - 1,291,763
Repayment of unsecured loan %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BER - (1,566,692)
Net cash generated by financing activities BEZE SRS FE 7,038,000 16,985,971
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEEEY2
cash equivalents #gm/ (Bd) FE (1,978,208)| 13,174,485
Cash and cash equivalents at the BBEENZRERELSEEY
beginning of the financial year 13,516,622 216,340
Effects of exchange rate changes ERENE 8 - 125,797
Cash and cash equivalents at the end BBREERZESRASESEY
of the financial year 19 11,538,414 13,516,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & B % 3 & ff &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s registered office is situate at Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands, British West Indies. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is situate
at Room 802, Tower |, Harbour Centre, 1 Hok Cheung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the sales of healthcare products in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & # % # = fif &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-ZTZT+H=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a

number of new standards, amendments and interpretations (the

“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"), which are either effective

for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005

or 1 January 2006. The adoption of these new HKFRSs has had

no material impact on the amounts reported for the current or

prior accounting years.

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The directors anticipate that the application
of these new standards, amendment or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of

ERAFAREETEEHBHREER
(BERMBHEER])

RAEE  AEECEREREBSHAMA
@U%%@%%Q@Dﬁﬁz = TH A
Bl - AT RRE AR -_TTRE+_-_A—
A —TERE-A-RAd &M &st
HEREN - RAXSHAIBRAYBEREE
ARG EENBLEEHFEMERNE
BUBBATE -

AEEYERFPEMTIIERMEHRER
ZHRTEA  EFTRRE - ETEY  ER
ZEMTED  BRAREHTEHAKE
ZEERMBRABREATE

the Group.
Note
Bt 5F
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures 1
BB G ERFE 1R (BB PR 7R 5% 58
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1
BEENBHRESLERETR F%BIA: KE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 7
BRI KRS LR E8HR megnE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 2
BB (AR BRERBEEY) - RBESH ERUMBRELNE 2R ER
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 3
BB (AR BRERBEEY) - RBER B ARITELA
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 4
BER (AR BRERBEEY) - RBE 105 R A R ROR(E
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share Transactions 5
BB (AR BRERBEEY) - RBE115 EENBRELRELR -SEREFRNRS
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements 6
ER (AR BRERBEEY) - RBE 125 PRI a2 B
Notes: B3k
1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 1. RITTLF-A-HIAzEHABZFERH
£
2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006 2. RIZEZTRFRA-HIE &R 2 FEHHE
R
3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006 3. RIZZRGFAA-BAdzERBZFEER

4. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November
2006
5.  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

6. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

7.  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

4. RZZERF+-A-ARZBAKRZFES
Gl

5. RIZZLF=FA-HARIZEMARZFEHH
£

6. R-ZENF—-A-BRzRRBZFERRE
X

7. RZEBERNE-A-BIRRBZFEDRR
M
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHER

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalized goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year.

When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TESHEE (&)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Sales of goods are recognized when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

(ii) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment

and systems 30%
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in
the year in which the item is derecognized.
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R R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognized as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognized in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognized directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized as
a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognized in the
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalized
as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalization of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3. TESIMEBER (&

MEIA (&)

RBEE (&)
BAFPEAABRZHBEE
BAVEFABRR I MBEEAMERE
Bl - BEFHERE 2B 75 & E M 1) 16 R
BETRAFEFABEZUBEE -

MR THIER - A EEE 2 AR N
S2HBEE  TRARRERED AR
AFEH AR

o FAREAE MBI AEAESERERA
BB —BZER &K

s HMBEEMAKMBEEXMBRESDS
NEME  YREASEREEREE
FRERE  RATEEEEE LG
HEXR MoBRERARZELEART
RH X

s WHBEEAKEBE —BIUALBRAALT
HRTAZAWNESRED  MEEGHE
BIE3RAMENAHAN (EERE
B BEDRRATFEFABRZHBE
& o

NERARESAEEHD  BRTFEHA
BEZMBAENATENE ATEED
EHABHEEEARER -

40 AnnuaL RerorT 2007 # %



g2 @ R AR 2 8 New CHINESE MebiciNe HoLDINGS LiMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & Bt % 3 & I &

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, and bank balances) are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognized
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in
equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is removed from equity and
recognized in profit or loss. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not reverse in profit or loss in subsequent periods. For available-
for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TESHEE (&

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial liabilities held for trading and
those designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.
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R R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of
the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the convertible bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, represented by the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the conversion option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability component and amortized
over the period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Consideration paid to reacquire the Company’s own equity
instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designed as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognized initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization
recognized in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive

cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TEEHBX (&
Provisions BiE
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present EAKBRBEEHAERBAEMS  BAE
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that BAAEERBNZEERER  BSRRR
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions B BERESMEREMHARNEEARE
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure BEBHZIHHE TRABBEAVER
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and BRERE -

are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Share-based payment transactions BRORERZARRE

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions NEZFAEERINBOAER 2R S
For share options granted to employees, the fair value of services RETEECEREMS  2ZREHBH
received determined by reference to the fair value of share EREEREZATEEEZMERRE 2
options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line AEEREFBEBHRRANEREESH  mMER
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in (BREGEE) TSHEEEM-

equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of REFEER  RAEEBBITHEAEHEERE
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The BoEREEE 2HE - B EH(WE) 2
effect of the change in estimate, if any, is recognized in profit TERBEZRRR  UTHEREREELDE
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve. ERE -

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount REREETER  BERBRERERR
previously recognized in share options reserve will be transferred CEHERBBEEROAE EERENBE
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after Riewog Wk Em B AR - BRE
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the REREREER 2 CESEREREE
amount previously recognized in share options reserve will be oo

transferred to retained profits.

For share options granted to suppliers in exchange for goods or RETHEFABRRERLRE 2 ERER
services, they are measured at the fair value of the goods or T REBERERFERZERIRBZA
services received. The fair values of the goods or services are FEFAE ERIRBRATFEINREREA
recognized as expenses immediately, unless the goods or services AY  BREERIRBEEREEREE
qualify for recognize as assets. Corresponding adjustments have BEoARAEHESIELAEAE -

been made to equity.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions KB &E M&MHXT’J?B%%ZHM?&%

For cash-settled share-based payments, the Group measures the FURESEEROBER TR S
goods or services acquired and the liability incurred at the fair BlizaE s DT EFEME f@fuc'u_iﬂﬁ%
value of the liability. At each balance sheet date, the liability is EIEEZEBE REEER  BREUQYF
remeasured at its fair value until the liability is settled, with any BENHAE=EZEEREE MEMAFE
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. PPN ERRER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year:

(a) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the
on-going evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis
of the trade and other receivables and on management’s
judgments. Considerable judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realization of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor, and the present values of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rates. If the
financial conditions of the Group's debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment loss of trade and
other receivables may be required.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’'s major financial instruments include bank balances,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
convertible bond. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises when future commercial transactions
and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the Group’s functional currency. The directors
consider that the Group does not have significant foreign
currency risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2007, the Group’'s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.

Price risk
The Group is not subject to significant price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty to a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation with
the results that the Group thereby suffers financial loss. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, and bank
balances and cash included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. No other financial assets carry a significant
exposure to credit risk. The Group monitors the trade receivables
on an ongoing basis and only trades with creditworthy third
parties. In addition, all the Group’s bank balances and cash are
deposited with major banks in Hong Kong. The Group has
policies in place for the control and monitoring of such credit
risk.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 5, EEEHHERTAEREEANCEERR

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations.

(%)

REBESER
REERPESRRMNE AKEEE LA
SERRENRARERERRES UL
BERERENDFEZRERASFED
KF-EEEEHENAIZESHMN - K
ERABTHAVBERAGEEMBERL -

REVENUE &
2007 2006
ZEZtE —TTRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from sales of goods HEE MmN 14,692,426 9,016,957
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS X¥BERHBEDE
Business segments £ 5

No further business segment information is presented as the
Group's operations relate solely to the sales of healthcare
products in Hong Kong.

Geographical segments

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue is
attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the assets. No further geographical segment
information is presented as over 90% of the Group's revenue is
derived from customers based in Hong Kong, and over 90% of
the Group’s assets are located in Hong Kong.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HitARWa
2007 2006
ZEELE —EERF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest income on bank deposits BITHFERZFBUWA 332,018 281,115
Gain arising from the Deed of Settlement (Note) BRZEBEES 2 W () - 2,229,743
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 24) BB A A U e (KEE24) 1,727,575 -
Foreign exchange gain, net NI UK 25 0F 5B 209 1,730
Sub-lease rental income SAEBEE WA - 204,375
Sundry income MEWA 1,444,441 342,315
3,504,243 | 3,059,278
Note: Bt

On 25 November 2005, the Company announced that it had entered
into a deed of settlement dated 24 November 2005 (the “Deed of
Settlement”) with Mr. Ng Siu Fung (the “Creditor”), pursuant to which
the Creditor irrevocably agreed that the Remaining Indebtedness (as
defined below) of HK$12,229,742.70 shall be settled by the issuance
of a redeemable convertible bond (the “convertible bond”) by the
Company to the Creditor in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with a term of 5 years. A gain of HK$2,229,743 arising
therefrom was taken to the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2006.

By a loan agreement dated 17 January 2005 entered into between the
Creditor and the Company, the Creditor agreed to advance up to the
extent of HK$15,000,000 to the Company and the Company promised
to repay the Creditor principal plus interest accrued at the rate of
5.25% per annum on or before 30 June 2006. The Creditor advanced
an aggregated sum of approximately HK$13,095,017.72 to the
Company as working capital since entering into of the said loan
agreement, and as at the date of the Deed of Settlement, the balance
of the indebtedness outstanding, inclusive of principal, interests, fees,
costs or otherwise (the “Remaining Indebtedness”), amounted to
HK$12,229,742.70.

In consideration of the Creditor agreeing to settle the Remaining
Indebtedness pursuant to the Deed of Settlement, the Company entered
into a bond subscription agreement with the Creditor on 24 November
2005, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the Creditor
agreed to subscribe for the convertible bond. The convertible bond
was issued to the Creditor on 27 January 2006. The movements and
major terms of the convertible bond are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. MKER
2007 2006
“EELE “EERE
HK$ HK$
BT B
Imputed interest expense on the convertible bond ARG S 2 HEE N BRX 276,859 90,153

Interest on unsecured loan wholly repayable BARAFABHEEL

within five years EERERA S - 353,525
Other interest paid HEu g {78 - 24,779
276,859 468,457

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation arising in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Company and its subsidiaries had
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year (2006:

Nil).

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits

10. FIEBMAX

| Ak
=T B o
Al 7

EEFESRIEFENGERBEFIM17 5%t
B(ZZTRE 17.5%) - REMAEEER
EEZHBREMAZEREREBNRE

ARAREREAMNBRARIRAEFERNERE
WHEELERRBGEN  HLBRPHHRERA

REBNSHELEE CTTRFE) -

— ==

RAEERESHRAEEZNEEBERATER
BIHEI1T5% (ZEERFE 1 17.5%)sFE 212

tax rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) as follows: WEBZEENMT :
2007 2006
“ETtE “TTRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before income tax FriERiAEE (6,628,342) (1,332,011)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate HBEBNEHERFE 2 BIE (1,159,960) (233,102)
Income not taxable for tax purpose BAERB WA (3,237,958) (468,260)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose L 53 245,755 77,335
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognized AEREREZELHBEE (12,905) (69,696)

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset VTEEEHBEEEERAZ

was recognized M EE 546,658 346,477
Others Hh 3,618,410 347,246
Income tax expense P13 B R X - -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

11.

No deferred tax liabilities are recognized in the financial
statements as the Group and the Company did not have material
temporary difference arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts as at 31 March 2007
(2006: Nil). The Group's deferred tax assets not recognized in
the financial statements are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

10. FiEHMAX (&)
R-ZZZLE=A=+—H ARAEEK
ARABERABZHRERRAEYESEAX
TRZR R BERRALBERZETHR
RAEE(CTEAE E)  UERMBERR
NERZAKBEERBEEENT

2007 2006

—EEtE ZEERE

HKS HKS

BT B

Tax losses THIEE R 3,618,588 3,076,716
Accelerated depreciation allowance R E B 39,463 10,892
3,658,051 3,087,608

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profit is probable. No deferred tax assets are
recognized in the Group’s financial statements as it is uncertain
as to whether these tax benefits will be utilized in the
foreseeable future. The tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong are subject to approval by the Inland
Revenue Department of Hong Kong.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

BT IRE E A AR T % At AR B R
RIERBOL M BRI &8 2 AR
BeoARNKESEXERBHNERETGRA
RERESR RitYERAEEYBRE
BRELHRAEE - EEBEEZWELA
EECRBEBRBGEERERERRE A

fEE -

M. FEHAER

2007 2006
“EELFE —TTRE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before income tax has been arrived FrEfiaBED Nk
at after charging: THI&IE :
Auditors’ remuneration 2 E0ED B & 300,000 275,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MERRENE 50,834 25,095
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEVME BERIEEER - 258,078
Inventories written off EAEk i - 381,156
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises BBHAEWEZKLHERS 147,000 445,800
Cost of inventories expensed FERAL#H 13,850,010 7,763,974
Employee benefits expense (including EERAAXZ
directors’ remuneration): (BEESH:) :
- Salaries and allowances - He MEM 1,995,109 1,772,424
- Equity-settled share-based payments - UEm A EE RARL
RER AR 5,823,600 -
- Contributions to defined contributions plans - MREHRAKG R 39,219 29,096
7,857,928 1,801,520
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Company’s ENKENEARBSESZHMENT ¢
directors are as follows:
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Share-based benefits
For the year ended 31 March 2007 Fees benefits payments schemes Total
#eR NRGA BAEA
BE-ZE+F=A=t-ALEE ik EtRIE ER AR B X
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS
BT B B B BT
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Wong Chun Keung HEREE - - - - -
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon THELE - 189,000 886,200 7,500 1,082,700
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement BagEt - - 886,200 - 886,200
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia EME - 310,636 886,200 9,000 1,205,836
Mr. Ng Tin Shui RAEEE
(Appointed on 13 July 2006) (W=FEX%E
tAT=HEZf) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHfES
Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREE 96,000 - - - 96,000
Dr. Loke Hoi Lam BEigmEL 96,000 - - - 96,000
Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BEERE 96,000 - - - 96,000
Total faE 288,000 499,636 2,658,600 16,500 3,462,736
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 12.EEM < (&)
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Share-based benefits
For the year ended 31 March 2006 Fees benefits payments schemes Total
HER HR% A BAEA
BE-EENE-A-T-ALEE ok g ERZAR HE L3 3
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
En En B B B
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Chun Keung BEERAE(N-Z20E
(Appointed on 20 July 2005) tAZTREZA) - - - - -
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement BEREE(R_Z3RF
(Appointed on 20 July 2005) tAZTREZA) - - - - -
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia ERZME(R-ZTHF
(Appointed on 20 July 2005) tAZTHREZR) - - - - -
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon TRELE(R-EZRF
(Appointed on 29 December 2005) TZAZTNBEZA) - 241,027 - 7,000 248,027
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo EREAE(N_E20E
(Resigned on 20 July 2005) tAZTHE) - - - - -
Ms. Leung Oi Wah PEELT(R-TTRF
(Resigned on 20 July 2005) tAZTHEE) - - - - -
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred FRALE(N_220%F
(Resigned on 31 August 2005) NAZT-HET) - 152,000 - 4,000 156,000
Mr. Gao Junging REERE(R_ZZREF
(Resigned on 20 July 2005) tAZTHE) - - - - -
Mr. Lin Daquan AR (M-ZTR%E
(Resigned on 20 July 2005) tAZTHEE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE
Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREE 96,000 - - - 96,000
Dr. Loke Hoi Lam EEnEL 96,000 - - - 96,000
Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BRELE(W-ZT0F
(Appointed on 20 July 2005) LA-TREEM) 67,097 - - . 67,097
Mr. Junya Kabeya EARDEE (R_2ZLF
(Resigned on 20 July 2005) tAZTHEE) - - - - -
Tota g 259,097 393,027 - 11,000 663,124
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12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2006: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2007, Mr. Wong Chun Keung
waived emoluments of HK$576,000 (2006: HK$402,581); Mr.
Fung Cheuk Nang Clement waived emoluments of HK$456,000
(2006: HK$318,710), Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia waived emoluments
of HK$162,000 (2006: HK$318,710); Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon
waived emoluments of HK$215,000 (2006: Nil); and Mr. Ng Tin
Shui waived emoluments of HK$327,290 (2006: Nil).

12.

ExME (A)

RER  AEBYERNESNEMME -
ERREMBEARBLNMER ZF 2 HIE
REREE(CZERF B -

BE-_ZT+E=-A=1+—-HIEE =i
BELE BRI S576,0008 T (ZBENE
402,581/870) © 5 E 8E 5 £ 3 %2 B € 456,000
BT (CETRE 3187108 7T)  BME N
HEAEWE162,0008 T (ZEEXNEF -
318,710/ 7T) » TRELETRREI$215,000
BL(ZEERF B RRREREH R
£327,2908 T (ZEERE : ) -

The directors consider that they are the only key management EEZRA BRERAEECE—FEEREE
personnel of the Group and details of their compensation have AB BHRSEBEZFBEANLX -
been set out above.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM &
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEEBZIARRHFATAERE (ZEER
Group, two (2006: two) were directors of the Company whose FMB)ARBEFT EMeEN L XM
emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note 12 above. PEE - AEEZEBR=FZ (ZTTF: =
The emoluments of the remaining three (2006: three) individuals Z)EeSHEEZHMeNT :
were as follows:
2007 2006
“EELE “EERE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits HehEMAE 736,016 465,977
Discretionary bonuses 1B AL 59,030 -
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RIRAE FIFT &I 3R 30,026 18,096
Share-based payments AR BB 2 R 3,165,000 -
3,990,072 484,073

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
(2006: Nil).

A AL 2 Bi€ 451,000,000 7T °

FRASEYERILZRSHEALINE
e EFARSMBEASBELNMERZ
FEHERBBEE -
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LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company includes a loss of HK$20,662,584 (2006: HK$493,492)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the equity
holders of the Company is based on the consolidated loss
attributable to the equity holders of the Company of
HK$6,628,342 (2006: HK$1,332,011) and the weighted average
number of 644,231,554 (2006: 442,729,453) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2006 and
2007 have not been disclosed, as the share options and the
convertible bond outstanding during these years had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

14.

15.

FRRARBRAARGER

ARAESHAEAREREBEROEER
20,662,584/ L (Z T T /NF © 493,4928
) ERARAZHBRETEE

BERER
ARAEERBEABLCEREAREBEIR
BEAZARAEEREAERLEEBE
6,628,342 Bt (ZZEZNF 1,332,018
T)RBESEBER 2 MEF Y
644,231,554 (ZZE TN F : 442,729,453
fg) L@BRETH -

HE - TZENER_TET+E=AF=+—H
IHFERERTENERERTERESSH
GREANBFEEARESURE AT EZT
ZEFE 2 BREEESE -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - MERXRE
Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixtures and Motor
Group improvements and systems equipment vehicles Total
Bl B
HE#E RERES RERRHE RE By
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT B
Cost KA
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTh%
mA—H 735,861 887,234 163,552 100,331 1,886,978
Additions NE - 48,750 40,688 - 89,438
Disposals HE (735,861) (893,634) (163,552) (100,331) (1,893,378)
At 31 March 2006 RZTTRE
and 1 April 2006 “A=+-Bk
“TEREMA-A - 42,350 40,688 - 83,038
Additions nE - 25,586 133,111 - 158,697
At 31 March 2007 RZETLE
ZA=+—-H - 67,936 173,799 - 241,735
Accumulated depreciation ~ RitTERBE
and impairment
At 1 April 2005 WZZ2EHRFNA—B 567,060 832,435 120,537 100,331 1,620,363
Provided for the year FENERE 10,000 11,099 3,996 - 25,095
Eliminated on HERB
disposals (577,060) (834,368) (123,541) (100,331) (1,635,300)
At 31 March 2006 RZBERE
and 1 April 2006 ZA=t-Hk
—ZZXEMA-H - 9,166 992 - 10,158
Provided for the year ERAEAE - 17,414 33,420 - 50,834
At 31 March 2007 RZEF+5=A=+t-H0 - 26,580 34,412 - 60,992
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2007 RZEB+tE=F=+-0 - 41,356 139,387 - 180,743
At 31 March 2006 WZEERE=A=+-B - 33,184 39,696 - 72,880
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For the ye

ar ended 31 March 2007 HE-ZT+E=A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AR 2 RE
Company
PN
2007 2006
—BELE —EERE
HKS HKS
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRG - RKA 40,005,108 40,005,108
Less: Provision for impairment losses o OREE R E (40,005,108)| (40,005,108)

The amounts due from subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s
balance sheet are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. The directors consider that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2007
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The general credit terms offered by the Group to its customers

18.

ARBZEERBRARZEYHE R K
BREER 2ERAREREER EFR
REBEAENRSNEAFE-

BEARNFINBATR _ZEZE+EFE=A=1
—AZHBEHRY B HRRMEI0 -

FE W B R K H At FB WK OR

AEBERARPRHZ - REEHR/NET

are payments by the end of the month following the month in ZEHNERG AN GBI ANERE -
which the sales took place.
Group Company
¥ 1 | AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELEF | ZTTRF | Z2ELE | Z2TRF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Trade receivables, with ageing [EUER T - KRR
analysis: D
0 - 30 days 0 — 30K 5,260,633 391,200 - -
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K 1,239,540 250,200 - -
Over 60 days 60K A £ 55,116 175,338 - -
Total trade receivables R EE 6,555,289 816,738 - -
Deposits and prepayments we RENRIE 174,025 198,964 126,226 126,187
6,729,314 1,015,702 126,226 126,187

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables approximate their fair values.

EERARKERCEAENREREARY
-
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. RTEERRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and ROBGERACEEFAEERERSRNE
bank balances that are interest bearing at prevailing market ERERATSMNERRTHRA=ZBEARE
rate and have original maturity of three months or less. The R2PRTER EERRBRITERRE R
directors consider that the carrying amounts of bank balances REEELIAEQNTE -

and cash approximate their fair values.

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EREER R HEtENSFIE
Group Company
rEN AR
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE | CTERE | ZBELE | —TTRE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
T BT BT BT

Trade payables, with ageing FERBR - RRER

analysis: DI
0 - 30 days 0-30K 2,594,243 - - -
31 - 60 days 31-60K - - - -
Over 60 days 60K 46,279 - - -
Total trade payables e ER R B 5 2,640,522 - - -
Other creditors and accruals ~ E A & 5078 K fE 51 & 17 2,442,392 | 6,552,315 286,885 289,485
5,082,914 6,552,315 286,885 289,485
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and EERRENRRRAMBENRIEZREE
other payables approximate their fair values. WESRERTE -
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21. KRR RA

Number
of shares Total value
BRHEE HiE
HK$
BT
Authorized: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREMBEOIB L2 EBR
At 1 April 2005 RZEZERFNA—H 20,000,000,000 200,000,000

Share consolidation (Note (a)) Bt & B (B EE(a)) (15,000,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREE.04E T2 Lk
At 31 March 2006 and 2007 R-BERNER-ZFRLHE
=H=+-—H 5,000,000,000 200,000,000
Number
of shares Total value
KRB EE ME
HKS$
BT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEOVE T Z LB
At 1 April 2005 RZEZRFMA—H 469,000,000 4,690,000
Share consolidation (Note (a)) B1n & O (Bt 3 (a)) (351,750,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREE.04E T2 LBk
Upon completion of share consolidation N SRR DR 117,250,000 4,690,000
Issue of new shares under the share subscription  1RIE 17 RS 8 %17
agreement (Note (b)) R (B (b)) 450,000,000 18,000,000
At 31 March 2006 RZEEZRF=A=+—H 567,250,000 22,690,000
Issue of new shares upon conversion of P BT R (B 5 B AT
convertible bond (Note (c)) # i (M (c)) 138,888,890 5,555,556
Issue of new shares upon exercise of share T EREREITHRD
options (Note (d)) (M EE(d) 46,000,000 1,840,000
At 31 March 2007 R=BELtF=ZA=+—H 752,138,890 30,085,556
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21. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share consolidation

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
July 2005, the Company consolidated every four shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company into one new
share of HK$0.04 each (the “Share Consolidation”).
Immediately before the Share Consolidation, the authorized
share capital of the Company was HK$200,000,000,
comprising 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of
which 469,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
and fully paid. Immediately following the Share
Consolidation, the authorized share capital of the Company
remained at HK$200,000,000, comprising 5,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.04 each, of which 117,250,000 shares of
HK$0.04 each were in issue.

Share subscription

The Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement dated 27 May 2005 (the “Share Subscription
Agreement”) with Excel Point Holdings Limited (the
“Subscriber”) and Mr. Wong Chun Keung (as the
Subscriber’s guarantor), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to allot and issue, upon completion of the Share
Consolidation, 450,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each in the
capital of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) to the
Subscriber or its nominees at a subscription price of
HK$0.04 per Subscription Share (the “Share Subscription”).

The Subscriber also entered into a placing agreement dated
27 May 2005 with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
placing agent, as agent of the Subscriber, agreed to place,
on a fully underwritten basis, 95,020,000 Subscription
Shares at HK$0.04 each to independent investors upon
completion of the Share Subscription. Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting on 6 July 2005, the
450,000,000 Subscription Shares were issued on 11 July
2005. The Subscription Shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects with all other shares then in issue.

The net proceeds from the Share Subscription, amounted
to approximately HK$17.3 million, were intended to be
used as general working capital or for making future
investments should there be appropriate investment
opportunity identified by the Group.

21. KRR RA (&)

(a)

B 4% & B
BEARAABRER-_ZEERFLANH
BEFIAZTBBZERRAZE A2
ABAARRARBNEEBENIETL
Bin & BB EREEAE T 2 H KM
(TRBEH]) « B 28 - KRR ZE
F MR A 200,000,000 T 0 &
20,000,000,000/% & i E{E0.01/8 7T 2 %
R - H ™ 469,000,0000% & /% &
00BN AEETRER - ZRER
MeaM®E  AARZEERADA
200,000,000 7T + #45,000,000,000/% &
BEECME T ZHRMHER  HF
117,250,0000% & IR E{E0.047% 7T 2 Bz 13
BE#T -

N-ZERERA-++H KAQRHE
Excel Point Holdings Limited([32 & A )
REfERLE([REAZERAD L
BiRURERZ ((RBRZE]) © it
ARAERBRNEHERERTRAE
[ ([FREEMD ) 0.048 T2 B1T{ER
REAINER R AR B R #T
450,000,000/ fx 7 (TR 13 R E& ) -

ABALN -_ZTAFRA-_FT+HE
FRERBLEERE Bt - BBER
BEUBBAREZEORBORES
KENEHBHEEENBLE - FRE
95,020,000 RE R fn (15 Rkfn & R
BEERALDAEBHTRAY
16.75%) @ BRIEB0.04E T - RIEAR
ABRER-_ZETERFLANAZREE
ARXeE LBBNETBAEER %
450,000,000 RERHER-_ZTTHEF
+tA+—BET  RERORETRE
HHEABESE T EZFEREMA - RERE
BEETHRNZAERSFA

o

& 17 R B8 B9 F %8 17,300,000 T & A 1E
—REEES  IRAEEEREAR
EReRBERKIE -
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21. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(c)

(d)

Conversion of convertible bond

On 9 October 2006, the convertible bond with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was converted into
138,888,890 shares of the Company at the price of
HK$0.072 per share.

Exercise of share options

Share options were exercised by option-holders during the
year ended 31 March 2007 to subscribe for a total of
46,000,000 shares in the Company by payment of
subscription monies of HK$7,038,000, of which
HK$1,840,000 was credited to the share capital account
and the balance of HK$5,198,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

21. AR FRE (&)

(c)

ERuBRRES
RZZEZEXNF+ANB LEEA
10,000,000 T 2 AT IR B % LA & &
0.072/8 L 1% AR 2 7] 138,888,890/
Bin e

TEBERE
REBEE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLF
B BREEBRESEATEARE
& #£46,000,0008 A2 A fE (D - AR A
$ B RE7,038,00008 0 0 A
1,840,000 LEFF ARAERR - M T
5,198,000 LAl E st AR5 BEE »
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22. RESERVES
Group

22.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

R
r&EE

AEBAFEREAZ RECERARHE
WIRBANERESE ARSED

statement of changes in equity on page 29 of the consolidated %= o
financial statements.
Company /N
Convertible
Share bond  Share option  Accumulated
premium  equity reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
R EE Biff BRERR 2HER @t
HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B B
At 1 April 2005 RZETHEMA—H 19,008,723 - - (36,544,488) (17,535,765)
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (493,492) (493,492)
Total recognized income EREARAR
and expenses for the year RY@Es - - - (493,492) (493,492)
Share issue expenses ROETER (739,100) - - - (739,100)
Issue of convertible bond BRRES - 3,035,794 - - 3,035,794
At 31 March 2006 and RZFERF
1 April 2006 ZA=+-BR
ZEEREMA-A 18,269,623 3,035,794 - (37,037,980) (15,732,563)
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (20,662,584)  (20,662,584)
Total recognized income ERERRAR
and expenses for the year By#m - - - (20,662,584) (20,662,584)
Recognition of equity-settled B ER A
share-based payments HEERIARR
REBRZFAH - - 5,823,600 - 5,823,600
Issue of ordinary shares upon 1700 B AR B
exercise of share options BILEER
(Note 21(d)) (K E21(d) 11,021,600 - (5,823,600) - 5,198,000
Issue of ordinary shares upon RERREFEER
conversion of convertible bond  BETEAER
(Note 21(c)) (ME21(c) 4,811,456 (3,035,794) - - 1,775,662
At 31 March 2007 RZB2tE
ZR=t+-H 34,102,679 - - (57,700,564) (23,597,885)
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RESERVES (continued)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution include the
share premium and accumulated profits/(losses). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands
(the "Companies Law"), the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realized
or unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with
the Companies Law.

In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March 2007, the
Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
(2006: Nil).

CONVERTIBLE BOND

As disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company issued the convertible bond with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 to the Creditor on 27
January 2006. The major terms of the convertible bond are as
follows:

Maturity date:

The convertible bond is due and will mature on the fifth
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bond. The
Company shall repay the principal amount outstanding under
the convertible bond to the bondholder(s) on the fifth
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bond.

22.

23.

& (&)

ARRA DIk B G ERREF,
(B18) - RERSRBZERFNERAE (B
&) ([R8NE]) - RARKRMEE A RRR
NEREXNRE - EAETARAABER
K@M BRAERRARERED RH
XBRBE  NAENEBERAERBBRE
REHNES DALY IRI RS
BEARRAGERAR  BRERARALR
AEERAARER BN ENEREES
RRTBFREZEMNFEETRETRAX
- ERBERREROFAET  BEMA
BRMEERIRBEREAELRE T
WEMESHEAFRETIREN -

EERAE K= :
NETEATED R 2 EMEE(CETRF
&) -

TRRES

BINEEE M BRI ESAKE - ARARN
TERF-A-TLtHRBEEAZTAEA
# 5 $£10,000,0008 T2 fEH - BEHFZEE
BRI

HHA
ABREEFNARRESETRRES DR
FRIMEER - AARARATARES %
TRBEIRFEMERATRARESSE
ANEERERESZRKEERESE -
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23. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 23. AR ES (&)

Redemption:

Ten certificates in respect of the convertible bond in the principal
amount of HK$1,000,000 each were issued to the Creditor by
the Company. The convertible bond may be redeemed at the
option of the Company in whole (in an amount of HK$1,000,000
each), but not in part, on giving not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ notice to the bondholder(s) at their principal
amount without any interest.

The directors have assessed the fair value of this early
redemption right and considered the fair value to be
insignificant.

Interest:
The convertible bond shall not bear any interest.

Conversion rights:

The bondholder(s) shall have the right to convert the convertible
bond in an amount or integral multiple of HK$1,000,000 of
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible bond into
shares of HK$0.04 each in the capital of the Company at any
time following the date of issue of the convertible bond at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.072 per share (subject to
adjustments).

Conversion shares:

Assuming full conversion of the convertible bond, the Company
will issue 138,888,890 new shares of HK$0.04 each. The
conversion shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the
then existing shares in issue.

Transferability:

Subject to the approval of the Company, the convertible bond
may be assigned or transferred to any party or parties other
than a party connected with the Company or any of the
connected persons as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that it will
disclose to the Stock Exchange any dealings by any of the
connected persons as defined in the GEM Listing Rules from
time to time in the convertible bond immediately upon the
Company becoming aware of such dealings.

Em
ARRERMEBERBARTTOAESEAEN
1,000,000 T2 AR EHFFE - AQE A
BEFANITBRRESFFEAZLTLRI0
AT EiE60R Z @M » HALE (RaHIfM
FE)ERTRBESFZ22B(UEH
1,000,000/ 7LET) (B 3EEH) ©

TEOSELRPEARLATE  BRA
SATHYTERX -

ME
RBEESFTETFNFAE -

BRE:
BERABERNURRELFZITARREMNE
BMENTHRBEGREK0.072%8 T (7] 75
B)EnrBaRkESFcRERRS B (S8 A
1,000,000 T E T B EE) AR AR 2K
AN F IR EEC.04B T2 Kk ip -

BRBM

BHRUBREFEEER  AQBBET
138,888,890 & R E{E0.047%8 7T 2 # {n ©
BRBRHBESTEREREE 2D ETR

DERRFHEE -

L F

FARAARMAER  REREFTERAEE
THREARRBEZ ALRARRETRA
REZEFMBEEALUIIZEMAL - AR
A 2 [ Bl 52 BT R S A A ) B R AR B
MHRAREZBEALIRETAIRRES
ZENBEER HBABRXAEEZEE
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23. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)
Voting right:
Holder of the convertible bond (or any part thereof) will not be
entitled to attend or vote at any shareholders’ and/or
warrantholders’ meetings of the Company by reason only of it
being a holder of the convertible bond (or any part thereof).

Listing and trading of the convertible bond:

No application will be made for the listing of and permission to
deal in the convertible bond on the Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange.

The convertible bond contains two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity
heading “Convertible bond equity reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 7.5%.

The movements of the liability component of the convertible
bond for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007 are set out

B R &M

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FZT+H=A=+—HILFE

23. IR ES (&)
RERE:
AR E s (REEASD) 2HEABEE
ERERERES (KEEFAFD)FEAZ
S HEARDRZEFMBRR R, &R EE
BEAREIRELRE -

ARRESLTREE :
$"*Tﬁ§’rWAEE§$Ttt}&TTﬁ‘Hx%ﬁ R B
HEMEMELFRXZGHALTREE -
—Hﬁﬂ% ZEEMBY BESD REDH
cREDMACEINED  BEA/ABK
L&‘F*&E%ﬁﬁj BEBIZAERNEXR

7.5% -

TRRRFARPARE-FEAER-F
PLE=AS+-RLZEHNT :

below:
HK$
BT
Principal amount of the convertible bond BHEZAERE 10,000,000
Equity component EmE D (3,035,794)
Liability component on initial recognition AL 2 BERND 6,964,206
Imputed interest charged HERNEXZH 90,153
Liability component at 31 March 2006 RZBEERF=-A=T—HZEBEHN 7,054,359
Imputed interest charged EEREZH 276,859
7,331,218
Conversion into the Company’s shares i RN E KRG (7,331,218)
Liability component at 31 March 2007 R-EBZELtF=ZA=+—-HAZEEHH -
On 9 October 2006, the convertible bond with an aggregate RZEZRAF+ANA BEEAR

principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was converted into
138,888,890 shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.072
per share.

10,000,000/ 7T 2 A AR (E 5 LA B % 0.072/8
JLEE R 5 KA 5] 138,888,890 Ik {7 ©
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24. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 December 2006, the Company disposed of its entire
equity interests in its subsidiaries, NCM Shoji Co. Limited and
New Chinese Medicine (Website) Limited at a consideration of

24, HEMB QR
RZZEZERNFTZATNA  AREURE2
7 T & H HT B 22 AINCM Shoji Co. Limited
R (BE)ERARINEHER - B4

HK$2. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of are as HEMNEERBEBENT :
follows:
2007
—EELF
HKS$
BT
Deposits and prepayments B RBEMARE 911
Other creditors and accruals HipEARERETER (1,406,728)
(1,405,817)
Release of translation reserve BHoHBERE (321,756)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A K& 1,727,575
Total consideration, satisfied by cash RSz BR(E 2
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRERAFHE 2

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

25. MEHORIE
R-ZZE+HE=A=+—H FAEEREA
BEEMRZ A HEER
Bz AR O EERENT ¢

BARATHA

2007 2006

g3 o 3 i

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 1 year —E R E 129,600 12,320
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFERFIE

(BREERMF) 23,040 -

152,640 12,320

The operating lease relate to warehouse facilities for a term of
two years from 5 June 2006 to 4 June 2008 at a monthly rental

of HK$10,800.

FRRERBZREHNE ST REXA
LHAM BE-ZTTN\FAANAR

_IJ: ,

AEME - 3 AHE£10,8008 T °
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. BRETE

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved on 1 February 2002 pursuant to a
written resolution of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected individuals to subscribe
for shares in the Company as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion,
invite any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or
any member of the Group, including any director of any member
of the Group and any advisor or consultant (in areas of technical,
financial or corporate managerial) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for the shares in
the Company for a consideration of HK$1 each lot of share
option granted. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for
a period of 10 years commencing on 1 February 2002. The
option period shall not be less than 3 years and shall not exceed
10 years from the date of acceptance of option. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an option
within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 46,900,000 shares, which represent 10% of the shares
in issue as at 7 March 2002, being the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM, unless approval from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each individual in any twelve-month period
up to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant unless approval from
Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified option
period. The exercise price shall be determined by the directors
of the Company, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated on GEM's daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

ARRRE—BEAAZEN _TT_F-
A—B#ARAR 2 B2 ([ERE
g -

ERETEHSESZAQRAEKEALTRY
ARBERARABROZERE  (FARSHA
EEMEEHM RBREER EEEARIE
BEARAGAEETAKERAR ZEME
BuRBES  REAFEEMKEARZ
TAESRARRRETMHB AR ZEIMN
BERSREAA (BRI R EEEE
) UEMAREARRROZERE &
AR LEREZREBET - BIRRETE
BR-_ZZ-F-_F—HEFTFHERNE
BFEW REREHERENEREASLE
HABOR=ZFRTERBBTF - BATL &
FEBREBRTEN G2 REH - &
MBI 2 1B LA R L B H iR 51288
X e

BEBERESSITTERD CBRES R 2RO
BEH AT EHB1B46,900,0000 [0 - S
RZZEZE-F=AtH (KRRAFRBRGBELER
FHE®S) ZEEITRMI10%  EEBREARR
BIREIEERIN c REERT AR (BEZ
B IER+—EAREAREGRALTRER
BELCERERTERS HETREETL
BHRETESEEREL AR ZEBTRG
1% @ HEEMBARBREIAZRI o

6 I HE BT X 45 7 2 P PR R D AT B T T
- TEERAHARAAERET LELR
TI=Fdhz&aE : IRRLRHEEE
RERREREIN 2 ARARMDUTE ¢ (i)
ERRHAMAREEEAZARERNF
B E K (i) AR B RO EE -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. B & (&)
The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued BREBERESFSMIRETIBRHERE
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be FREMEAEEREFTEIAMERR
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes TEBRENTERAEETZRNEAE
involving the issue or grant of options must not exceed 30% of BIRIAGEBTITREBTZARARKRG
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time. 30% °
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share TRBEBEHZ_TTHE=A=+—HILHF
options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 EERENETANA 2ERES
March 2007:

Outstanding Granted  Exercised Outstanding

Date of Exercise Exercise  as at 1 April during during as at 31
Grantee grant price period 2006 the year the year March 2007
R-ZBEXE RZEELE
mA-H ZR=t-H
HRTE  FERE  FEAR  HAOE
ERA RLBH RE el ZERE <BRE <BRE BRE
Directors
Bz
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon 29/11/2006 HK$0.153 29/11/2006 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 -
to 28/11/2009
IRELE 0.153% T 29/11/2006
£28/11/2009
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement 29/11/2006 HK$0.153 29/11/2006 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 -
to 28/11/2009
BEELE 0.153% T 29/11/2006
£28/11/2009
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia 29/11/2006 HK$0.153 29/11/2006 - 7,000,000 7,000,000 -
to 28/11/2009
Bz 0.1538 7 29/11/2006
£28/11/2009
Sub-total - 21,000,000 21,000,000 -
Pt
Employees 29/11/2006 HK$0.153 29/11/2006 - 25,000,000 25,000,000 -
to 28/11/2009
E& 015347 29/11/2006
£128/11/2009
Total - 46,000,000 46,000,000 -
@zt
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The closing share price immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.15. The weighted
average share price at the dates of exercise of the share options
was HK$0.18.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$0.1266 and the Group recognized a share option expense
of HK$5,823,600 during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs into the model used for the
year ended 31 March 2007:

Expected volatility: 192.44%
Risk-free interest rate: 3.475%
Expected life of option: 3 years

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. No other feature of the
share options granted was incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

The 46,000,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 46,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company and
new share capital of HK$1,840,000 and share premium of
HK$11,021,600 (before issue expenses).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees. During the year ended 31 March 2007, the total
amount contributed by the Group to the scheme and charged
to the consolidated income statement amounted to HK$39,219
(2006: HK$29,096). As at 31 March 2007, there were no
forfeited contributions available for the Group to offset
contributions payable in future years (2006: Nil).

26.

27.

BRESE (&)
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28. LITIGATIONS
The Group was involved in the following litigations:

(a)

A writ of summons was filed by two plaintiffs against,
among others, Wondergold Limited (“Wondergold”), a
subsidiary of the Company, on 4 January 2005 regarding,
inter alia, a claim for breach of an agreement by
Wondergold and other losses and damages (including but
not limited to the damages for breach of trust by
Wondergold, damages for detinue and/or conversion and
the net proceeds for sale of goods and the repayment of
HK$ 1,500,000 which was already repaid by Wondergold)
alleged to be suffered by the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs also
sought an injunction against Wondergold to restrain
Wondergold from selling or disposing of or in any way
deal with the said goods. It was adjudged and declared by
the High Court of Hong Kong on 16 June 2006, the goods
and those remaining unsold as pleaded in the Amended
Statement of Claim as at 22nd November 2004 are the
property of one of the plaintiff. It was further adjudged
that Wondergold has to give an account as at 22nd
November 2004 of all sales of the goods achieved on the
premises, of the net proceeds of those sales and of the
goods remaining unsold on the premises and an order for
payment to one of the plaintiff, of all sum found due on
the taking of the account and all further proper accounts,
inquiries and directions as pleaded in the Amended
Statement of Claim; damages for detinue and/or conversion
to be assessed; and costs of the High Court action. On 8
August 2006, Wondergold's monthly profit and loss
accounts were presented to the plaintiff's lawyer. As at the
date of approval of these financial statements, no further
action was taken by the two plaintiffs. The directors
consider that no further provision in respect of the claim is
necessary.

A writ of summons was filed by Brilliant Wealth Investment
Limited in the District Court against Wondergold on 20
September 2005 for arrears of rent, rates, management
fees, air-conditioning charges and mesne profits in the sum
of HK$568,371.55 and for damages to be assessed. It was
adjudged by the District Court of Hong Kong on 6 March
2006 that Wondergold has to pay the plaintiff the sum of
HK$568,371.55 together with interest thereon, which had
been fully provided for in Wondergold’'s financial
statements. As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, no further action was taken by the plaintiff.

28.
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Brilliant Wealth Investment Limited =
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29. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 2. #EHAEE

On 21 May 2007, the directors proposed to make a bonus
warrant issue to the shareholders of the Company on the basis
of one warrant for every five shares held on the record date
(the “Bonus Warrant Issue”). Each warrant will entitle the holder
thereof to subscribe in cash for one share of the Company at
an initial subscription price of HK$0.60, subject to adjustment,
at any time during the period which is expected to commence
on the date of the issue of the warrants, i.e., 29 June 2007
and end on 30 June 2010 (both dates inclusive). The Company
intends to apply any subscription moneys received as and when
subscription rights attaching to the warrants are exercised
towards the general working capital of the Group or for such
other purposes as the directors deem necessary, taking into
consideration the requirements of the Company prevailing at
the relevant time. The Bonus Warrant Issue is conditional upon,
among others, the approval by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting to be held on 27 June 2007.

R-ZEZLERA-+—H EEGEAR
ARBZ2RBBRRAANSABTRRE
& P ARNTEBENERARRKRO AR
B RBRREE(BTANRREE]) - §—
DRBREERBABERE B RTRRE
HHEH B -_TTLFRAZTAEEE
TE-ZERAZTRLER(BREEREM
B) 2 EEERE - &9 5 BEE0.60/8 T (7
BIFEE) RBARR — KD - AAREE
7R R T B W 2 IR B RE - 1
EREE —REEES  REENEEX
ARANHEBERRER BERRR/LEZH
AR - BITANBBEEMN SRS - 2
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. B A RFE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+F=ZA=+—H ' ARAEWHE
are as follows: NRFEAT :
Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued

incorporation/ paid up share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation Legal form share capital by the Company Principal activities
BRfT LNGTEEY ]
EMARL/ kz®E BRTRA
WEARER e EEER BERE HEBD L TEXH
Directly  Indirectly
HE GEE3
% %
New Chinese Medicine British Virgin Limited Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands liability @R R EZK
RBEREUES company US$200
BEREARA  200%7T
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Investment holding and
Limited B liability LR providing secretarial
MEEERRA company HK$10,000 services
BREERA 10,0007 REBRRIEHRERS
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive
(HK) Limited Bk liability LER EE2x
MRE(ER)BRAA company HK$10,000
BREMRA  10,000% T
Wondergold Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive
BEEERAA BE liability Ak TEEX
company HK$10,000
BREMRA  10,000% T
Harvest Rich Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 51 Inactive
HEBRAF Bk liability LEmR TEEX
company HK$10,000
BREMERA  10,000% 7T
NCM Group British Virgin Limited Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands liability L@k REZK
RBREUES company Us$1
BREARA %R
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30. B A TIFEE

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/ paid up share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation Legal form share capital by the Company Principal activities
B#1T LNGTEEY]
HMmEL RE2E ERTRA
WEARER EE-$ih EER BERE HEBDHL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
B &
% %
NCM Healthcare Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Trading of healthcare
Limited B liability LEk products
HEERBERAF company HK$2 REERES
EREARA 281
NCM Healthcare Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Trading of healthcare
(HK) Limited BB liability L@k products
HEERE (FHE) company HK$2 REERES
BRAA EREARA 281
Asia Honest Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Providing management
(H.K.) Limited BE liability EBRk services
AT (BE)BERDF company HK$1 REEERE
EREARA 18T
Quick Faith British Virgin Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive
Limited Islands liability L@k TE2%
KERUES company Us$1
EREARA 1%

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MEMBRARASEARAFEZERIA
FENENREFEZEBES
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY 8t #& # 2

For the year ended 31 March, 2007 HBZE-ZZ+tF=A=+—BIFE

Year ended 31 March

BE=A=+-ALEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—EE=F -—TTEME -—TTRE -—TEAEF |ZBELE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Results E4
Revenue Uz 14,021,237 636,406 8,011,404 9,016,957 |14,692,426
Loss before income tax B i aIEE (27,834,737) (23,882,091) (3,425,660) (1,332,011) |(6,628,342)
Income tax expense FEHHEX (3,848) (5,166) - - -
Loss before minority interest LRk R EEATEE  (27,838,585) (23,887,257) (3,425,660) (1,332,011) |(6,628,342)
Minority interest YRR ER 191,850 - 4,900 - -
Loss for the year attributable F R A#EH A
to equity holders (R EE (27,646,735) (23,887,257) (3,420,760) (1,332,011) |(6,628,342)
At 31 March
R=A=+-H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—EE=F -—TEME -—TERE -—TEE |ZEELE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Assets and liabilities BEERERE
Total assets BEE 20,409,345 2,523,679 1,767,985 15,596,161 |20,315,121
Total liabilities and minority 428 & & D &
interest e T (10,295,478) (16,058,552) (18,868,978) (13,606,674) |(5,082,914)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8F)FE 10,113,867 (13,534,873) (17,100,993) 1,989,487 [15,232,207
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